

User Guide: The Healthy Start Hub

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	3
GETTING STARTED	
WHAT YOU CAN EXPECT IN THE HUB	4
Your Profile	4
Newsfeed	4
Groups	4
Discussions	4
Forums	4
Messages	4
Events	4
CHANGING YOUR ACCOUNT SETTINGS	5
Login Information	5
Notification Settings	5
Privacy	7
Group Invites	7
Export Data	7
COMPLETING YOUR PROFILE	7
Accessing Your Profile	7
Editing Your Profile	
THE NEWS FEED	9
Posting to the News Feed	
Liking Posts	
Search the Feed	
Commenting on Posts	

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

MESSAGES	14
Message Notifications	
Accessing Your Inbox	14
Messages Page	15
Sending Group Messages	16
GROUPS	18
FORUMS AND DISCUSSIONS	20
Discussions vs. Forums	20
Accessing Discussions	20
Accessing Forums	20
Creating a Discussion	21
Replying to topics	22
UPLOADING RESOURCES	23
Uploading to Your Profile Page	23
Uploading to a Group	24
The Upload Popup	25
REQUESTING SUPPORT	26

www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

Introduction

The Healthy Start Hub is a community platform created by the Healthy Start TA & Support Center (TASC) for HS grantees and partners (e.g., subject matter experts, TASC staff, DHSPS staff). The Hub provides a space for users to connect, engage in discussions, share resources, and much more!

The HS Hub is powered by the National Institute for Children's Health Quality's (NICHQ) Community, Research, & Analytics Lab (CORAL). CORAL aims to support projects teams –like Healthy Start – in connecting, collaborating, and sharing across distance and time. This guide provides an overview of the platform, how to access it, and how to navigate it.

Getting Started

To access the Hub, you will first need to register for a Healthy Start Hub account. To do so, please visit this link: <u>https://hub.healthystart-tasc.org/register/</u>

Fill out the fields on the form and click create account.

The TASC will then be notified of your request. TASC staff will approve your registration and you will receive a confirmation email from <u>healthystart@nichq.org</u>. Please allow **2 business days** for the process to be completed.

HEALTHY	Ť.
start	1
TA & SUPPORT CEN	TER

Create an Account	or sign i
Email	
Password	
	٩
First Name	
Last Name	
Nickname	
Healthy Start Organization/Project	
	~
Your Healthy Start Project Director Full Name	
How are you connected with Healthy Start?	
How are you connected with Healthy Start? Select all that apply. To select more than one option, h while making your selections.	old the 'Ctrl' key
Select all that apply. To select more than one option, h	old the 'Ctrl' key
Select all that apply. To select more than one option, h while making your selections. Healthy Start Grantee	4
Select all that apply. To select more than one option, h while making your selections. Healthy Start Grantee Healthy Start Enhanced Grantee Which best describes your primary role at your l	<u>م</u>
Select all that apply. To select more than one option, h while making your selections. Healthy Start Grantee Healthy Start Enhanced Grantee Which best describes your primary role at your l	<u>م</u>

Create Account

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

What You Can Expect in the Hub

There are many different ways to access and share information in the Healthy Start Hub. Below are core features of the Hub you should be familiar with.

Your Profile

Your HS Hub profile is a way for other members to get to know who you are and how you are connected to Healthy Start. We encourage you to complete your profile, including uploading your photo!

Newsfeed

The newsfeed is where you will see all activity within the Hub, much like the newsfeed on a social media platform. This will keep you up-to-date on what's going on in the Hub!

Groups

Groups allow users to connect with each other around specific topics of interest. These groups will be moderated by TASC staff and provide a space for open discussion and resource sharing.

Discussions

Within each group, members can create discussions, members can also start stand-alone discussions about topics most relevant to them.

Forums

Discussions are organized into forums. This allows members to engage with others in ways that they want to and would be most beneficial to them.

Messages

Much like on social media platforms, you can direct message other HS Hub members. Connect with those you know and make new connections too!

Events

This calendar will sync up with the event calendar on the TASC's website. Users can reference the calendar to learn about upcoming TA and support offerings.

Changing your Account Settings

Your account contains private information about how you choose to interact with the HS Hub. This is different from your profile information (see page 7 for more information).

You can access your **Account Settings** by clicking on your name and photo in the top-right corner of the page (circled in red in the screenshot to the right), and then on the **Account** menu option (circled in blue). You can jump directly to the different sections of your Account Settings by hovering over Account and choosing one of the options (circled in green).

The sections of your Account Settings include:

Login Information

This section allows you to change your account email and password. If you change either of these fields, the system will notify TASC staff. They can help you if you are unable to login after changing these fields.

Notification Settings

This section allows you to update your notification preference and subscriptions. Once you have navigated to your **Account Settings**, as instructed above you will see the screen pictured below.





Select **Notification Settings**, as highlighted in green above, then select **Preferences**, **circled in blue above**. Under **Preferences**, you can control which notifications you want to receive from the HS Hub via email and via the website when you are logged in. By default, all notifications are enabled. You can opt out of all notification emails by un-checking the **Enable Notifications** box. Under **Subscriptions**, you can unsubscribe from groups, forums, and discussions if you no longer want to receive notifications about them. See screenshot below, hover over the group or forum you would like to unsubscribe from and there will be an "x" to the far right of the selected group or forum (circled in green below). This action does not remove you from those groups, forums, or discussions.

Notification Settings



At any point, you can re-subscribe by clicking on the bell icon on any of those pages. See screenshot below with the notification bell circled in orange.



Privacy

This section allows you to adjust your site-wide privacy settings, including which parts of your profile are visible to other users.

Group Invites

By default, every member of the Hub can invite you to join their groups. If you would prefer, you can restrict group invites to your connections only.

Export Data

In this section, you can request to download a copy of all of the data you have created in the HS Hub. The TASC will be notified of your request and will send you an email with the requested data within two business days.

Completing Your Profile

Your profile contains information about who you are, including your name, Healthy Start project, photo, and more. Complete your profile to help other users find you and connect.

Accessing Your Profile

You can access your **Profile** in two ways:

1. If you haven't completed your profile yet, you will see **Complete Your Profile** on your News Feed. Click this to access your profile.



308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

2. Click on your name and photo in the top-right corner and hover over **Profile**. See screenshot below with the way to access your profile circled in green.

arch		Q	Carla ShaylaRose Johnson
			ShaylaRose Johnson @sjohnson
(View		Profile
	Edit		Account
Welcome	Profile Photo		Timeline
ShaylaRos	Cover Photo	J	A Notifications
Johnson			🕞 Messages
to your Member			28 Connections
Dashboard			🕾 Groups

Editing Your Profile

Once you are in your Profile, select Edit.

CORAL Community, Research. & Analytics Lab	Q Search	C Q Nate Pic	kett 🧕
NICHQ National Institute for Children's Health Quality	NICHO NICHO		
	Inter Pickett @npickett - Joined Oct 2023 - Active now		
Profile Timeline Connections Groups	11 Videos Photos Forums Documents		
Details		C	Edit

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

From there, you can edit your profile details, add or change your profile photo, and add or change your cover photo. Once you're done editing your profile fields, scroll to the bottom and click **Save Changes**.

Profile Type (required)

TA & Support Center Staff	
Public Change	
Save Changes	

The News Feed

The News Feed is the front page of the HS Hub. It contains a chronological list of all activity relevant to your profile on the platform, with the most recent activity at the top. Similar to a social media platform, you can post directly to the feed to share any updates, ideas, or questions. You can also like and comment on posts in the feed. You can always get back to the News Feed by clicking on the button in the sidebar menu.



308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

In addition to the list of activities in the middle column, you'll also see different sections on either side of the feed. These sections highlight upcoming events, recent activity, and other relevant information. *Note: your widgets might look different from the ones below.*

	HEALTHY Ind start - Start - St	🖵 🗘 ShaylaRose Johnson 🜘
COMMUNITY	News Feed	Upcoming Events
News Feed	Share what's on your mind, ShaylaRose Johnson	There are no upcoming events.
Calendar	Q = 12	
寄 Groups	All Updates Q. Search Feed	Groups
💬 Forums	Calondra Tibbs joined the group 🐌 Healthy Start Enhanced Grantees ***	Healthy Start Enhanced Grantees
PERSONAL My Profile	10 hours ago	Public Hub
💭 My Messages	Calondra Tibbs became a registered member *** 2 days ago	active 2 days ago Catalyst Grantees active a week ago
A Request TA	∠ usy ago	Healthy Start Families active a week ago
	Calondra Tibbs joined the group 🔮 Public Hub 2 days ago	Healthy Start Project Directors active a week ago
(3) HS Hub Help	Nikki Maffei updated their profile a week ago ch Like Comment	Recent Discussions

Posting to the News Feed

To make a new post, click on the **Share what's on your mind box** at the top of the feed (circled in green in the screenshot below).



308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

emojis.

This will open a popup window (see screenshot below) where you can type your post. The popup window contains tools (circled in red below) that let you format your text, tag people, and add

Create a post	×
Nate Pickett	
Share what's on your mind, Nate Pickett	
	(Aa (@) (@)
o = 0	Post

You can also add images, videos, and documents (circled in blue above) to your post.

When you click on those icons, you will be prompted to upload your file(s) (see screenshot).

Create a post	×	
Nate Pickett		
Share what's on your mind, Nate Pickett		
8		
Add Files Or drag and drop		
	Aa @ 🕘	
	Post	

By default, posts are visible to all users. To change who can see your post, click the visibility options (circled in yellow above). You will then be prompted to choose who can see your post (see below).

Who	can see your post?	×
\$	Public Visible to anyone, on or off this site	0
- B.	All Members Visible to all members on this site	0
	My Connections Visible only to your connections	0
	Only Me Visible only to you	0
r a r aga	Post in Group > Visible to members of a group	0

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

Liking Posts

When you like a post in the News Feed, the thumbs-up icon will turn green and will indicate that you have liked the post (see screenshots below).





Posts that you like then show up in the Reactions list, making this feature an easy way to

bookmark posts so you can come back to them later. You can see this list by clicking on **Reactions** located directly beneath the box you use to make new posts. (See screenshot, circled in green.) Click on **All Updates** to return to the default view where you can see all activity on the News Feed.



Search the Feed

You can quickly find anything that has appeared in the News Feed by using the **Search Feed box**, located to the right of the All Updates and Likes tabs. The News Feed will begin filtering results as soon as you start typing; if you see a spinning circle icon, the system is actively processing your text.

News Fe	ed			
Shar	e what's on your min	d, ShaylaRose J	ohnson	
0 . 0				
All Updates R	eactions		Q Search Feed	
308 Congress Street, 5th Boston, Massachusetts C		nystartepic.org nichq.org	healthystart@nichq.org info@nichq.org	-

To clear your search, click the **X** in the Search Feed box or delete your text. If what you were looking for didn't show up, you can use the search bar at the top of the page to search the entire HS Hub (circled in green in the screenshot below).



Commenting on Posts

You can leave comments on other users' posts by clicking on Comment.



This will open a small text field where you can type your comment.

0	Nikki Maffei updated their profile a week ago
You	
	Comment
O	
	Post Cancel

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

If another user comments on one of your posts in the News Feed, you will see a notification at the top of the page. If you have opted in to receive email notifications, you will also receive an email.

Note: there are a few types of activities you can't comment on directly in the News Feed (like <u>discussion posts and replies</u>).

Messages

In the Hub, you can send private messages directly to other users. These messages are not visible to other users, unlike posts you make to the News Feed or forums.

Magazza	
Nate Pickett sample message!	•
View Inbox >	

Message Notifications

When you receive a new message, you'll see a number appear on the inbox icon on the top-right of the page (circled in red). The number indicates how many messages are in your inbox.

Accessing Your Inbox

Click the **Inbox** to see a quick view of your most recent messages (circled in blue above). This quick view shows who sent the message, a snippet of the message, and an orange dot if the message is unread. You can click directly on each message to read the full message and send replies. Or, you can click **View Inbox** (circled in green) to visit the Messages page where you can view all of your messages in one place.

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

Messages Page

To start a new conversation, click In the **To** field and start typing another Hub members name, people will start appearing for you to select who your message will go to (see screenshot below).

Messages	••• To: da	×
Q Search	Danisha Charles	
Deleted User You: 👏 • Dec 19	B Domonique Davis	

On the left side of the Messages page (circled in red), you will find a list of your conversations with other users, ordered from most to least recent. To view archived messages and to change your notification preferences, click the three dots (circled in pink).

Messages	Nate Pickett Started August 1	$\overline{\mathbf{O}}$
C Search Nate Pickett sample message! - Aug 1	Tuesday, August 1 Sample message!	
	Write a message	
	Return to Send Return+Shift to	

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

When you click on a conversation in the list, it will be highlighted in light orange and the full conversation will open on the right side of the page (circled in blue). To mark messages as unread, archive conversations, or delete messages, click the three dots circled in green menu.

Much like posting elsewhere in the HS Hub, in the "Write a message..." box you can upload documents, format your text, and add emojis.

Sending Group Messages

If you are a member of a group, you can also send messages to everyone in that group. There are two ways to do this.

1. Send Group Message – sends a message to everyone in the group that will display in group members' inboxes as from the group itself (see the screenshots below). From a group's page, click on the "Send Messages" tab (circled in red in the first screenshot). The "Send Group Message" option is the default selection (circled in blue). Type in your message and it will be sent to this group's members' inboxes.

eed Documents Discussions Members
Send Group Message Send Private Message
Send to All Group Members
Type message
Aa 🗿 🖿 🔟 🥹
Send Message

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

2. The second method lets you send a private message to selected group members, though it will be sent from you rather than from the group (see the screenshots below). You can get to this option by clicking the "Send Private Message" option (circled in red in the first screenshot below). You can choose which members you would like to message (circled in blue) and whether you'd like to message each recipient individually or by starting a new thread (circled in green). If you choose the first, default option of "Send Individually" where your message will appear as part of any ongoing conversations with that person.

Feed Documents Discussions	Members 8	Send Messages Send Invites Manage
Send Group Message Send Priv	ate Message	
Group Members	Select All	Send to
Q Search Members		Type message
Lisa Hong	0	
2 Domonique Davis	0	
Danisha Charles	0	
Jey Weisgerber	\bigcirc	
Sarah Summers	0	
Olivia Giordano Kean	0	Aa 👩 💷 😰 😉
ShaylaRose Johnson	0	Send Individually Send Message

If you choose the "Create New Thread" option, you will not be able to use the "Select All" button, only individual members, and the messages you send in this way will appear in that member's conversation with a note that it was sent from the group page.

www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

Groups

Groups are a core feature of the HS Hub. Groups allow users to engage in more focused discussions, share relevant resources, and connect with other members interested in the same topics.

There are already a number of groups in the Hub, including groups for Project Directors, Catalyst, and Healthy Start Enhanced grantees; groups for HS families and Alumni Peer Navigators; groups on Fatherhood, Breastfeeding, Evaluation, Consortium, Staff & Client Recruitment and Retention, and more. To see a list of all of the groups you can access, click on **Groups** in the sidebar menu (circled in red in the screenshot below). To view only the groups that you are a member of, click on **My Groups** (circled in blue). You can also use the sort tools on the right (circled in green) to view the groups by most recent activity, most members, or alphabetically; you can also choose between either a grid or list view.



Once you click on a Group and enter it, you will see a **Feed** (see screenshot below). Group members can post updates directly to the feed (using the box circled in green).

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

Ð	HEALTHY Start Contract Contrac
COMMUNITY Nows Feed Calendar	
 Members 쑝 Groups 	Public Hub
🛱 Groups	Public - Active 2 days ago This group is where we will share announcements, information and resources relevant to all.
PERSONAL	Resource & Networking Group Organizers: 🚇 🚯 🗸 Organizer
My Profile	
💭 My Messages	Feed Documents Discussions Members 9 Send Messages Send Invites Manage
\land Request TA	Share something with the group
🛞 HS Hub Help	Q. Search Feed

You can also click on the tabs (circled in orange) to navigate through the group's content, including:

- Members: a list of members of the group
- **Documents**: any files and folders that have been uploaded to the group (related: <u>Uploading resources</u>)
- Discussions: the forum for the group (related: Forums and Discussions)
- **Send Messages**: allows you to send a direct message to group members (does not show up on the group feed)
- **Send Invites**: allows you to invite other users to the group. If you invite members to a private group, they will still need to be approved by a group moderator.
- Manage: an option for group organizers and TASC staff to change the settings of the group
- **Photos, Albums, Videos**: any photos, albums, or videos that have been uploaded to the group

If you would like to subscribe or unsubscribe from the group, click **the bell** (circled in blue) to update your preferences.

Note: as the site grows and evolves, the tabs listed here might change

Forums and Discussions

Discussions vs. Forums

Within each group, users can engage in **discussions**. The Hub hosts multiple **forums**, which are used to categorize an unlimited number of discussions. Each group has its own dedicated forum.

Accessing Discussions

There are three ways you can view discussions:

- Within a group, click **Discussions**
- On the main News Feed, scroll down and view **Recent Discussions** on the right-hand side
- Click **Forums** on the sidebar menu and scroll down to view **All Discussions.** Here, you can see how many people have participated in the discussion so far, the number of replies, and which forum the discussion is in

Accessing Forums

Click **Forums** in the sidebar menu (circled in red below). On the Forums page, you can view all of the forums (circled in blue below). There is also a **Public Forum (circled in orange)**, which you can use to have discussions with all Hub users.



When you click into a forum, you'll be taken to a screen that shows all of the discussions in that forum. For example, in the screenshot below, I have clicked into the "**Breastfeeding**" forum, and now all of the different discussions within that forum are listed. If you're already on a group's

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

page, you can click on **the "Discussion**s" tab and then click on a post to get to this view as well (circled in orange in the screenshot below).

	Breastfeeding
	🛎 Public 🔹 Active 7 weeks ago
Organi	Resource & Networking Group
Do	Discussions Members 2 Send Messages Send Invites Manage
All Di	iscussions
	Breastfeeding Education Resources Nikki Maffei replied 1 month, 3 weeks ago 2 Members · 1 Reply
All Di	Breastfeeding Education Resources
All Di	Breastfeeding Education Resources
	Breastfeeding Education Resources Nikki Maffei replied 1 month, 3 weeks ago 2 Members · 1 Reply "Giving Flowers"

Creating a Discussion

To start a new discussion within a forum, click on New Discussion.



This will open a popup window that looks and functions much like posting an update on your news feed (see the screenshot below). The popup window will allow you to customize your discussion using the below fields:

- **Discussion title** (circled in red): Add a descriptive title so other users know what your discussion is about. *This is required*.
- **Discussion content** (circled in blue): Type your discussion content here, including any links you want to share.

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

- Formatting, attachments, and emojis (circled in green): You can format your text, attached photos, videos or documents, and add emojis.
- **Tags** (circled in purple): Tags allow you to categorize multiple discussions, even across different forums. When you start typing in a tag, the field will auto complete with suggestions if there are any that match. You can also add new tags. To add multiple tags, put a comma between the tags (e.g., access to care, equity).
- **Discussion Type** (circled in brown): The default discussion type is normal. If you want to pin your discussion to the top of the formal, select **sticky**. This option is useful for group organizers and admins to highlight important updates and discussions.
- **Post** (circled in orange): When your decision is ready, push the **Post** button and the forum will update.

Discussion Title	×
Type your discussion content here	
Aa 🙆 🕶 💷 🙂	
Type one or more tags, comma separated	
Type: Normal Votify me of new replies	Post

Replying to topics

There are three ways to interact with discussion posts (see below screenshot).

- 1. Reply to a post by clicking the **Reply** button and posting a response.
- 2. If you're not ready to post yet, or want to be alerted about new replies, click **Subscribe** to enable notifications for updates.
- 3. You can also click **Favorite** to add a post to your **My Favorites list** on your profile. This will allow you to easily return to the discussion.



Uploading Resources

You can upload resources either to the entire Hub or to a specific group. While the process is similar for both methods, this guide will walk you through how to upload into either location.

Uploading to Your Profile Page

To upload a document to your profile, click on your profile page and then click **Documents** (circled in red below). This screen will show you a list of all resources you've uploaded previously. Use the buttons on the top right (circled in blue) to upload a file or to create a new folder. When you upload files or add folders to your profile page, no one else can edit them or add things to your folders.



308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

Uploading to a Group

To upload files or create folders in a group, click on **Groups** in the side menu (circled in red below) then select the group you want to enter. In the group, click on **Documents** (circled in yellow), which will give you a view of the files and folders that have previously been uploaded to the group. Use the buttons on the top right of the section (circled in blue) to upload a file or to create a new folder. Unlike uploading to your profile, files uploaded and folders created in a group can be viewed by and added to by other members of the group.

密 Groups	FINIX	'AMA'	
Forums		AL Y H P	
Courses	Community Action Network		
		4 Public · Active 26 minutes ago	
PERSONAL		Resource & Networking Group	
My Profile	Organizar:	✓ Member 🥚	
🕞 My Messages			
A Request TA	Members 2 Feed Photos Videos Albums	Send Invites Discussions Manage	
	Documents	Q Search Documents & Upload Files C Create Folder	
	 Sorry, no documents were found. 		

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org

The Upload Popup

When you click on **Upload Files**, a popup window will appear where you can write a description, choose your file(s), and set the visibility. It's important to write a description of what you're uploading so other users can find and search for it more easily.

Once you select your file(s), the popup will update and let you add more or choose the folder you want to put the files into.

By default, files uploaded to a group will be public. If you want to change the visibility of the files you're uploading, use the dropdown menu to choose between Public, All Members, My Connections, and Only Me. Finish uploading your resource by clicking **Done**.

Upload 1 out of 1 uploaded	×
Write something about your documents, to be shown on your timeline	
Add Files upload-1.png	
Or drag and drop 0.1 mb	
Public Do	ne

If you want to choose a different folder to upload your files to, click on **Select Folder**. From there, you can choose an existing folder or create a new one (see screenshot below). Click **Back** if you don't want to change folders.

if you don't want to change rolders.	Upload 1 out of 1 uploaded	×
	Documents Documents	-
Finish uploading your resource by clicking Done .	+ Create New Folder Public ~	Back Done
308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210	www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org	healthystart@nichq.org info@nichq.org

Requesting Support

Should you need additional support or if you have questions not addressed here, you can use the **Contact TASC** button (circled in orange in screenshot below) to send us an email.

COMMUNITY	
News Feed	
Calendar	
Ambers	
終 Groups	
🤿 Forums	
PERSONAL	
My Profile	
My Messages	
Request TA	
🛞 HS Hub Help	
Contact TASC	

When you click on **Contact TASC**, it will open a form for you to fill out and that will send the Healthy Start TASC an email.

Please allow up to 2 business days to receive a response.

308 Congress Street, 5th Floor Boston, Massachusetts 02210 www.healthystartepic.org www.nichq.org